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connection with the legislation required 
to give effect to the arrangements al­
ready made. A good deal of anxiety 
was shown on behalf of Mr. Clarke 
that the least possible publicity should 
be given to the legislation effecting 
incorporation, which, being in the 
form of a private a'ct, required to be 
advertised. The session of the Legis­
lature opened on the 14th of Janu­
ary, and in the speech from the throne 
announcement was made of the Gov­
ernment’s intention to assist railway 
development in both the north and 
south of the Province. During thi 
session a bill to incorporate The A1

ment as a copy of the report of God­
dard, has the figures raised in sev­
eral instances, indicating an even 
greater cost. These showed the prob­
able cost of the railway, including 
equipment and ballasting, as about 
$26,000 or $27,000 a mile, and Mr.
Cross states that $30,000 was men-_______________
tinned by Dr. Waddell as a probable j foerta and Great Waterways Railway 
cost, though there is no doubt that company was introduced, which, af- 
Dr. Waddell was of opinion at that ter having gone through the regular 
time that the work could be done for stages, was passed on the 24th of 
$17,000 a mile or less. The rate of . February. During that session Acts 
interest on the bonds was fixed at 5 | Were passed incorporating ten differ- 
per cent. The Premier stated that • ent railways, and all of the other nine 
the usual rate recently had been 4 • were made subject to all the provi­
per cent., but they decided on 5 per jsions of the General Railway Act with 
cent, in this case because “it was a ; the single exception of the provision 
pioneer road, and had to go on the j for time of construction, which was 
market in competition with roads that | excepted from application in the case 
were guaranteed to run through j Gf two or three very short lines. In 
prairie county, easy country, settled ; the case of this Company, however, 
country.” Now it is quite evident that : no ]ess than 15 sections of the Rails 
a so-called pioneer road going into j way Act, in whole or in part, were 
an unsettled country would have poor- , excluded from operation, one of these

Department.” The effect of this was 0n a wire from my Edmonton Agents 
to transfer the oversight of railways that the formal organization of the 
from the Minister of Public Works Railway Company is complete), meet 
to the Premier. At this time the and authorize the execution by the 
Chairman of the Executive Council President and Secretary of (a) the 
had no engineering or office staff Agreement with the Government, (b) 
whatever, the only engineering staff the bond mortgage, (c) the bonds, 
of the Government being in the De- (,d) the Agreement with the Con- 
partfnent of Public Works. Such struction Company, and the Construc- 
continued to be the case through the tion Company Directors will likewise 
whole of the year 1909. A dissolu- meet and authorize the execution of 
tion followed the prorogation on the the same agreement.
25th February, 1909, and a general ; “S. Thereupon, the Premier, and
Provincial Election was held in March. ; Railway Company Officials will ex- 
esulting in the Government being ecute (a) the Agreement, (b) the

er prospects'of making a revenue from 
traffic receipts than one going through 
a settled country, but that would ap­
pear to be a very poor reason for 
making the annual fixed charge 
against it one-quarter greater than 
against the latter. There seems no 
doubt whatever that the payment of 
the interest charges did not concern

sections being one which incorporated 
53 sections of the Companies’ Act as 
part of the Railway Act, the purpose 
of some of which -was to require re 
turns giving information as to the 
workings and the shareholders of the 
Company, and of others to fix the lia­
bilities of shareholders and directors. 
Of these excepted provisions was one

.sustained by a very farge majority. 
On March 30th, Mr. Clarke tele­
graphed from New York to Mr. Minty 
at Winnipeg: “Friend has already 
started east. My information indi­
rect. Will wire when news more de­
finite, but know will need you soon.”

were, however, rejected as being too and the sale price by the Morgans, or were avadable at^ the time of the no 
severe. The standard to which the §740,000, and the evidence indicates gotiations, from Edmonton to the west- 
road is to be built, instead of being made that 
that of ijfke main line of the Canadiai
Northern as in the case of the other for underwriting. _ __
guarantees, is that of the Crow’s Nest given as to the difference between the 25 miles, making a total of 269 miles. 
Pass Railway, between Lethbridge and ordinary rate and Canadian terms, and j TIlc conclusion
Kootenay Lake, and the witnesses all that “ par Canadian' terms,” at which ! 
agree that what was meant was the rate the bonds were sold by Clarke, was j Having reviewed at some leno-th the

,1 ..U ____ • __ j. mo _ j •____ . ° . - ,road as it was originally constructed equivalent to about 103 per cent. This principal facts and circumstances which 
some fifteen years ago. The speeifiea- ' difference was not explained, but it seem to have a bearing on the subject 
tions are admitted by Dr. Waddell to be appears that for the convenience of ; matter of the inquiry, it is necessary to 
for a very low standard of road, and he calculation, securities in American cur-1 
stated that he proposed to build a read ‘ rency are quoted on the London Stock ' 
which would cost §1,900 or more a mile Exchange at the rate- of $5 to the pound, j

Mr. Clarke and his friends to any which required that two directors at 
great extent Their purpose in ask- j least should be residents of the Pro- 
Ing 5 per c*mt. U fra nkly admitted by j vince. Others related to the acquisi- 
Dr. Waddell to have been to realize tion of the road by the Province, in
a higher rate on the sale of the bonds, 
and Dr. Rutherford and Mr. Cross 
both state that they considered the 
increased rate was justified for this 
purpose inasmuch the road being 
a pioneer road through a new country, 
its bond's would not sell as well as 
those through a settled country. There 
seems little doutfit that for the rea­
sons stated as tyo the probabilities of 
revenue there would be reason for 
this view if the prospective pur­
chaser had ,*o other security than 
the upd «king itself; but there 
seems <•'</.tally as little doubt that the 
P-z 'vï;,<Vs sruarartee would be quite 
as valuaV- 3 in one case as the other, 
and the < aractèr of the undertaking 
need no* be considered. This ex­
planation appears scarcely adequate. 
Mr. Cushing states that the rate of 
interest was not discussed at this 
meeting while he was present, nor 
was the question of terminals. On 
the other hand, Dr. Rutherford and 
Mr. Cross deny this, and say these 
matters were all settled at this meet­
ing. After obtaining the letter above 
referred to, Mr. Clarke at once left 
Edmonton and proceeded to Eng­
land for the purpose of arranging a 
sale of the bonds which were to be 
given. Before he had returned from 
England Mr. Minty, his solicitor, wrote 
him from Winnipeg the following let­
ter:
“W. R. Clarke, Esq. Dec. 12, ’08. 

“Dnilted Company,
Kansas City, Missouri.

“Re Alberta Great Waterways Rail­
way Company.

“My Dear Mr. Clarke—Mr. J. K. 
Cornwall called upon me today, as he 
was in town, and had just had an 
interview with Mr. Rutherford. The 
latter is anxious to know that mat­
ters are proceeding satisfactorily. 
Naturally, he has taken you and your 
associates largely on trust, placing 
confidence, as he does in Mr. Cornwall 
and your friend, but as a result he 
looks to Mr. Cornwall and your friend 
to see that he is not placed in a 
position of embarrassment ; therefore, 
while he does not ask for details as 
to what you are doing, he wishes Mr. 
Cornwall to be able to assure him 
from time to time what the progress 
is. Mr. Cornwall states that he feels 
that he is in a position of respon 
sibility to Mr. Rutherford, and that 
he can utilize his position towards 
conveying to Mr. Rutherford such in­
formation as you may be able to give, 
and at the same time be able to ad­
vise you as to Mr. Rutherford’s per­
sonal views and anxieties, so that 
you may be able to meet them as far 
is possible. He suggested that he 

mid communicate with me from 
ae to time, and that I could pass 
the information to you, and that 
ike manner you could keep him 
•med through me.”

Minty states that by the ex­
on “your friend,” he meant Mr. 

the Attorney-General. There 
doubt as to the correctness of 
ts stated in the first sentence 
letter, but Dr. Rutherford 
h^t he said nothing to Mr.
I ,‘hat would justify what Mr. 
ys be repeated to him. Mr. 
*.s no reason why he should 
ed to as Mr. Clarke’s friend, 
vail, while not denying the 
ffect of the letter, qualifies 
\e statements, and Mr. Min- 
he may have gone further 
acts warranted. The letter 
i by a solicitor to his own 
îe same day that he had 
w with Mr. Cornwall, a£d 
*e may be inferences re­
galements, it is hard to 
ow such a letter could be 
>ut a general basis of 
o what is stated. The 
rises, why should there 
it to the Premier com* 
telly with Mr. Clarke 
tr any information he 
ilso should Mr. Cross' 
id, instead of his be- 
s “your friend”? And 
he Attorney-General 
)e a friend of a man 

^ . w months ago, was
and whom he had 

with only as the 
rterprise seeking a 
ToVlnce, whose in- 
?ross* duty' to pro- 
o these questions 
s letter produced 
. R. Clarke, Mr 
er, admitting the 
1 and Mr. Ruth- 
ivised, and stat- 
was going satis- 
to reports from

lieu of which a single section appears 
in the Act authorizing the purchase 
of the road at a fair value, but with­
out any provision for giving effect to 
the right to purchase. It is only fair 
to say, however, that Mr. Woods, the 
Deputy Attorney-General, states that 
without instructions, and on his own 
responsibility, he agreed to the ex­
clusion of the operation of these pro­
visions of the Railway Act from the 
draft Act of this Company, but he 
afterwards informed Dr. Rutherford 
and Mr. Cross, and stated his opin­
ion that the exclusions were unob­
jectionable. The Railway Act pro­
vides for the organization of the 
Company when 25 per cent, of the 
capital has been subscribed and 10 
per cent, .thereof paid into a char­
tered bank in the Province. The Act 
in question fixes the capital stock at 
$7,000,000, and authorizes the com­
pany to commence business as soon as 
$50,000 is subscribed and paid. The 
Act also authorizes the company to 
issue bonds to the extent of $40,000 
per mile, including branches and sid 
ings. Of the other companies incor 
porated, though some wrere for the 
construction of lines partly through 
the mountains and foothills, only one 
was authorized to issue bonds to 
greater extent than $20,000 a mile, 
and that one was one in which Mac­
kenzie & Mann were the incorpora­
tors, one of whose lines was to run 
to the summit- of tl>* Rockies, which 
was given power to issue bonds to the 
etxent of $25,000 per mile, but only 
in proportion to the length of the 
railway constructed or under con­
tract. As already pointed out, the 
cost of the road had been represent­
ed to the Cabinet to be from $26,- 
000 to $30,000 a mile ;but in the Act 
which only three months before the 
Premier had undertaken “to intro­
duce, promote and submit for rati­
fication,” power is given to create 
a liability against it of $40,000, or at 
the least one-third more than it? 
supposed probable cost. The Legis­
lature prorogued on February 25th, 
the next day after the passing of this 
Act, and on the evening of the 24th 
the Premier introduced resolutions, 
followed by bills, to provide for guar­
anteeing bonds of the Canadian Nor­
thern Railway, not exceeding $13,000 
per mHe, of certain specified lines, 
payable in 30 years with interest at 
4 per cent., such lines to be con­
structed to the standard of the main 
line of the Canadian Northern, and 
of the Grand Trunk Pacific branch 
lihes to the same extent, and the lines 
to be constructed to the same stand­
ard. One of the Canadian Northern 
lines guaranteed was from Morinville 
to Athabasca Landing, a distance of 
65 miles. If this line were built in a 
straight line, and the Alberta and 
Great Waterways similarly built in a 
straight line to the west end of Lac- 
la-Biche, they would be only about 12 
or 15 mikîs apart at Morinville, and 
about 30 miles apart at Athabasca 
Landing. The character of the coun­
try through which they would pass 
would therefore probably be much 
the same. The evidence indicates that 
the line of the A. & ^ W. as actually 
partly constructed is even further west 
than the straight line, and conse­
quently nearer to the Canadian Nor­
thern line. The money received from 
the sale of the bonds in both cases 
was to be deposited to a special ac­
count in the name of the Provincial 
Treasurer, and paid out to the Com­
pany monthly as the work progressed, 
on the certificate of the government 
engineer. A similar resolution and 
bill were introduced in respe-ct of 
the Alberta & Great Waterways Rail­
way, authorizing the guaranteeing of 
its bonds to the extent of $20,000 per 
mile, including branches and sidings, 
and to the cost of the Edmonton ter­
minals, but not to exceed $400,000, 
the mileage not to exceed 350 miles, 
the bonds to be repayable on Janu­
ary 1st, 1959, and to bear interest at 
5 per cent. The moneys received 
were to be treated as in the other 
cases, but at the option of the com­
pany they might be paid upon the 
completion (except as to ballast) of 
every section of ten miles of railway 
line, nr*<i. on completion of all the 
lines and terminals, any balance 
the bank was to be paid over to the 
company. All of the resolutions and 
bills pissed through all the stages at 
the evening session. On the following 
day there was a morning session be­
fore the prorogation, which took place 
in the afternoon, and at*£hat morning 
session a Statute Law Amendment Act 
received Its second and third, read­
ings. This Act dealt with numerous 
Acts which were being amended, and 

aving made ar- amongst others was an amendment to 
Mly to himself the Railway Act, substituting “the 
onds, returned, Chairman of the Executive Council” 
l coming on for the “Minister of Ptiblic Works, 
It. Minty spent and “Office of the Chairman of Ex

Mortgage, (c) the Bonds.
“\ou will appreciate the fact that the 

Directors and Officers of the Railway 
Construction Company will be so selected 
as to enable them to act at any place 
where Mjr. ÇîJarkc and I may be, although

M. Minty sa>s that he understood
that the telegram referred to Mr. j____ 1 3
Cross, and on the same day, which 
was Tuesday, he replied by letter, in 
which he stated: “I saw Mr. S. B.
Woods and Mr. O. M. Biggar here 
on Saturday. At that time they seem­
ed to have no definite knowledge of 
Mr. Cross’ movements, but seemed to 
juel that he would be leaving Ed­
monton in order to get away from 
election worries, arid that his move­
ments might be either to Honolulu,
California or elsewhere. I am there- 
fgre not at all certain that Mr. Cross 
has started east yet.”

The concluding sentence suggests 
the expectation on the part of Mr.
Clarke and Mr. Minty that Mr. Cross 
was going east, though it might be 
announced that he was going to 
Honolulu or California. Mr. Cross 
says that as far as he remembers he 
had no arrangements with Mr. Clarke, 
or any one for him-, to go east to 
meet him. He did, however, as a 
fact, leave for the east about the 
date of the telegram, and went to 
New York, v.’here Mr. Clarke called 
on him at his hotel, though, Mr. Cross 
says, .without any prearrangement on 
his part. Mr. Cross states that Mr.
Clarke wished him to go with him 
to Ottawa to introduce him to the 
members of the Dominion Govern­
ment in furtherance of his desire to 
obtain a subsidy from the Dominion 
for the railway. Later in the month 
of April Mr. Clarke, with Mr. Minty 
and Dr. Rutherford and Mr. Cross, 
met in Ottawa, and Mr. Cross intro­
duced Mr. Clarke to some of the 
Dominion Ministers. Shortly after 
this Mr. Clarke went to England ag­
ain and arranged a sale of the bonds 
to the London and Paris houses of 
Morgan. Before leaving, however, on 
the 8th of May he wrote Mr. Minty a 
letter, in which he stated: “It is 
my plan to receive from the Bond 
Syndicate, which must pay various 
small commissions, to bankers, brok­
ers, etc., another and larger com­
mission for a consideration adequate 
to the syndicate. In so far as the 
Trustee is concerned, he need know 
nothing about this commission, for 
he would receive the net proceeds 
of the bonds from the manager of the 
Bond Syndicate. But my commission 
would be a large one, 10 per cent, 
to 1-5 per cent., aiid with the under­
standing on the part of the Bond 
Syndicate that the money would go 
into the work. The reason for re­
ceiving the money In this manner 
would be sufficient to satisfy the 
Bond Syndicate. What I would like 
to know is, whether an arrangement 
of this kind would be illegal as re­
gards the Government, the Guaran­
tee Act. etc.”

Mr. Minty replied on the 11th May 
advising that the proposed plan was 
not^feasible, pointing out that the Act 
required that ALL moneys realized 
by the sale of the bonds should be 
paid by the purchaser into the ap­
proved bank to the credit of the Pro­
vincial Treasurer.1 He points out, 
however,, that “the Government is 
taking the chances of the price at 
which the bonds are sold, being made 
such that the purchasers will pay 
the expenses, etc.; but they know, on 
the other hand, that you could not 
venture to risk the placing of the 
bonds at ./less than the full market 
price, lest you should thereby be 
destroying the credit of the Company 
and of the Government.

After Mr. Clarke’s return from 
England, some correspondence passed, 
and early in September, Mr. Clarke 
and Mr. Minty came to Edmonton, 
accompanied by Mr. McArthu/r and 
Mr. Fisher as solicitor, and also 
solicitor for the Morgans. Certain de­
tails of the transaction were con­
sidered and finally settled, and on 
the 12 th of September, just prior to 
his departure for Winnipeg, Mr. Minty 
wrote the following letter to Mr.
Woods:

“Edmonton, Alta.. Sept. 12, 1900.
“My Dear Woods—The plan of cam­

paign is for the Premier to leave on 
Monday for the east, and be away un­
til about the 1st of October. We also 
go east. Therefore the matters can 
most expeditiously be closed out 
there. What I therefore propose is:

“1. To have all requisite Orders- 
in-Couricil passed before the Premier 
leaves, giving him in his appropriate 
capacities powers to close out all de­
tails while east.

“2. To have the mortgage printed 
In Winnipeg as soon as I arrive. The 
printed form will be executed. Pend­
ing time of execution, copies will bo 
sent to you for checking, and to Sir 
Frank Crisp, for his final sanction.
Sir Frank will cable his àpproval, 
and by that time I hope all will be 
in readiness for immediate execution.
Mr. Fisher will then cable that the

dummies.
“This outline will shoxv how we have 

to bring the threads together quietly at 
some convenient place in the east, and 
why your part oi the matter will need 
some adaptation to the conditions.

“At the• present moment your part 
of the plans stand thus: (a) The Mort- 
gage is settled, but the Truet Company 
is not chosen; (b) the Building Agree­
ment is settled—Mr. Cross having con­
curred in omitting the clause that we 
agree that the Railway shall cost §20,000, 
and in retaining the clause that as each 
10 miles is completed, except as to ballast, 
we get $200,000.

Therefore I suggest that before the 
Premier leaves tomorrow you have 
passed: (a) An O.C. approving the 
mortgage and authorizing the Pre^iclcnt- 
in-Council (Mr. Rutherford) to execute 
it. 1 would suggest that no reference 
be made to the Trust Company, but when 
he settles upon the name can E>e filled 
in ex post facto or mine pro tunc (which­
ever Latin phrase is suitable) by you on 
a wire from the Premier. This will 
enable us to send Sir Frank Crisp now 
a complete copy of the Order-in-Council 
and relative mortgage, (b) An O.C 
authorizing Mr. Rutherford, as Provincial 
Treasurer, to execute now printed bonds 
in the form in the mortgage without 
coupons, to be hereafter replaced by 
engraved or lithographed bonds and 
coupons, to be then executed by him 
or the then Provincial Treasurer, (c) 
An O.C. authorizing the Construction 
Agreement, and directing its execution 
by the President of the Coiiucil. The 
specifications will be attached. These 
will either be approved now by jMr. 
Rutherford absolutely or else tentatively, 
subject to confirmation by Mr. Jones. 
If the latter, 1 would recommend that 
the O.C. be unqualified in form, but 
that Mr. Ruthcriord should delay exe­
cuting the agreement until he gets a 
wire from Mr. Jones. A copy of the. 
agreement and specification' could be 
retained here and the original taken by 
Mr. Rutherford, so that upon receipt of 
Mr. Jones’ wire, Mr. Rutherford could 
sign the contract in the cast, (d) An 
O.C. approving of the Traders Bank of 
Canada as bankers, or, better still, 
leaving the name of the bank blank, 
so that Mr. Rutherford could wire the 
name when selected. Tnis is not so' 
important for the moment if Mr. Ruther­
ford were to return promptly after sign­
ing the papers, for by the time the 
moneys were being taken over in Eng­
land he could be hack and able to pass 
the Order-in-Council then, and wire 
the name and authority to Mr. Fisher 
for him to transmit to P. Morgan & Co. 
Yet I would recommend the passage of 
the O.C. in blank now in order that we 
may have the present control of all 
possibilities that might by any chance 
make a delay hereatter. 1 shall keep a 
copy of this, go that wc can refer to our 
programme.

“If you concur in the above, please 
have Mr. Rutherford take with him—
(a) Ceritfied copies of the various Orders- 
in-Council for Mr. Fisher and myself.
(b) Such . copies or evidence as will 
enable him to know that the printed 
mortgage and bonds I produce to him for 
execution are agreed upon. This may 
be adequately met by your telegraphing 
him hereafter when you receive the 
printed mortgage that it is in. proper 
form, and that the bonds are to be in 
the form contained in it. (c) Engrossed 
copies of the Construction Agreement, 
including specifications.

“Yours faithfully,
“(Sgd.) Gz D. MINTY.”

The paragraph stating that Mr. Cross 
had agreed to eliminate the clause re­
quiring the company to build a road 
costing $20,000 a mile, besides suggesting 
that he was the minister negotiating 
on behalf of and representing the Pro­
vince, shows that at that time his atten­
tion had been drawn to the fact that 
there must have been good reason to 
think that the road could be built lor 
less than 820,000 a mile, or the company 
would not have asked to be relieved qf 
that • term, and the company was in 
addition seeking to obtain a subsidy 
from the Dominion, and, as already 
indicated, had obtained an introduction 
to the Dominion Ministers, if no further 
assistance from Mr. Cross for that pur­
pose.

The original of this letter Mr. Woods 
subsequently took from the Department 
fiies and destroyed. „ This he said he 
did in Mr. Minty’s interest, and because 
he considered the letter a private one to 
himself. The ‘1 plan of campaign” pro­
posed by Mr. Minty was not given effect 
to, and later the company organized in 
Edmonton in October, two organization 
meetings being necessary, owing to some 
informality about the first.

The fifty thousand dollars of capital 
stock required to be subscribed and paid 
up in full was subscribed for by Mr. W. 
Clarke $40,000, B. It. Clarke $5,000, 
Wm. Bain (Mr. Minty’s brother-in-law) 
$ 1,000, and Mr. Minty $4,000. Mr. 
Bain and Mr. Minty never paid anything 
on their shares, and simply held them as 
nominees of W. R. Clarke. Not a cent 
of money was actually paid on this stock,

•y lvr. wan eu to uu appears that tor the convenience oi ; matter of the inquiry, it is necessary to 
for a very low standard of road, and he calculation, securities in American cur-‘ estimate their value taken together as

' evidence in support of the conclusion im- 
K | puled by the terms of the resolution re- 

more than one built to the standard of ( instead of $4.806. This would be a j ferred to in the Commission. It will be 
these specifications. Mr. Cushing also, \ difference of 26 on the dollar, and is the seen that the only members of the Gov- 
by letter to the premier, suggested that j probable explanation of that difference. | emment or of the Legislature against 
the agreement should provide for pay-1 It is quite immaterial, however, for j whom the evidence, casts any suspicion 
ment of the proceeds o i the bond issue ; in the sale of the Provincial issue, and in: arc the then Premier and Attorm-y-Gcn- 
only up to the actual cost from month i both sales now being considered, the ! eral and Mr. Cornwall. With reference 
to month. This was not done, however, j pound is reckoned at $4.866. It, may j to Mr. Cornwall, it is admitted that he 
and the company was given everything ■. be said that a reputable house would ! received $14,500. and expects $10,500 
to the limit ;> authorized i by the Act. not lend itself to a secret arrangement more from Mr. Clarke’s railway and his 
The agreement entered into required the such as suggested. That may or may ! contract, and to that extent at least he 
Company to build at least 350 ,milc% oi not be the case. It may, However, j was directly interested in the enterprise, 
railway, including branches and sidings, j be noted that the prospectus issued by j As regards the negotiations, the contract 
and terminals at Ed mon* on to cost at it above mentioned stales that “The and the bond sale, he professes a pro- 
least $409,000, in both cases being tfie net proceeds of the present issue will be | found ignorance. He has stated that, 

authorized by the applied to the construction and equip-1in season and out 
ment of the said railway and terminals.”
This is very far from being an accurate 
statement of the fact. Under the terms

documents and bonds are duly exeeu- j though the certificate of the managers 
ted. and the bonds will be deposited f of the Merchants Bank was produceV 
with P. Morgan & Co.’s agents against 
the deposit in England of the pro­
ceeds. to be ns soon as banking facili­
ties permit transferred to Canada. Sir 
Frank will also doubtless ask for a 
ropy of the O.C., so I want one as 
soon as pssible for Mr. Fisher to 
send him.

“3. To incorporate the Construc­
tion Company, which I shall do forth­
with while east.

- showing the sum of $50,000 to the credi 
of the company. This was arranged b?
an overdraft permitted Mr. Clarke, b. 
which he drew his cheque for that amount 
and deposited it to the credit of the com­
pany, with the understanding that no 
money should actually be paid out o! 
the bank. The arrangement was carried 
-through by means of a resolution being 
passed, as soon as the company wtv; 
organized, directing the payment to W 

,,, A .. , R. Clarke of the $50,000 on account of
4. To organize the Construction ,fRes# expenses and disbursements, follovv- 

Company, which I shall do when i e(j issuing 0f pne company’s cheque
east* to Mr. Clarke, and its transfer to the

“5. To take out a license for the bank to meet the overdraft. After the 
Construction Company, whi | will be organization the. formal agreement was 
done practically simultaneously. [ entered’ into with the Government and

“6. To organize the Railway Com- the mortgage executed. Everything had 
pany, which will be done here by my 'been nettled at this time except the 
agents , specifications. Mr. Gushing submitted

"7. ' Th^rr-thÊjWtors of the specifications which, he had prepared
Edmonton in Tecutive Council” for "Public Works Rallway Company will while east (up-

by the engineers of his department, which

limit of the guarantee 
Act. It docs not in terms agree to guaran 
tec the bonds, but a bond was excepted 
for $7,409,000, . which is the largest 
amount authorized by the Act to be 
guaranteed, and this bond was guaranteed 
by the Premier in his capacity as Pro­
vincial Treasurer. It may be observed 
here with reference to this that when the 
resolution and iGuarantee Act were under 
discussion in the Legislature the Premier 
stated that the first fifty miles of rood 
would be easy, to build, and on objection 
to the largeness of the guarantee in that 
event, further stated that for that portion 
of the road;,the guarantee would be only 
to the extent of the cost, with a maximum 
limit of $20,000 per mile. The agree­
ment provided for the payment to the 
company of the proceeds of the bond 
issue in accordance with the second 
alternative provided by the Act, namely : 
On completion of each ten miles without 
ballast.

These arrangements being completed, 
Mr. Clarke and Mr. Minty proceeded 
to New York to complete the bond sale, 
By Mr. Clarke’s arrangements with the 
Morgans this was to be done not later 
than November 1st. Mr. Woods and Mr. 
McLeod, the Deputy Provincial Treas­
urer, accompanied them to look after 
the interests of the Province. Mr. Corn­
wall and Mr. Cross at this time were 
both in the cast. Mr. Cornwall in New 
York and Mr. Cross in Toronto. Mr. 
Cross arrived in New York on Monday 
morning, 1st of November, the day on 
which the transfer was made. He and 
Mr. Cornwall state that he went to New 
York in response to a telegram from Mr. 
Cornwall suggesting that he should go 
down and see a New York election. 
Mr. Cross says that it was not known in 
Edmonton that he was going to New 
York, but on the 30th of October* Mr. 
Thom, Mr. Cross’ private secretary, in 
answer to an inquiry from Mr. \V oods 
as to Mr.’ Cross’ whereabouts, wired to 
Mr. Woods : “Cross intends being in 
New York Monday morning, and likely 
stay for a week.” Mr. Cross does not 
know how Mr. Thom got the information 
from which he sent the telegram, and 
Mr. Thom can throw no further light on 
it except io say that he got it by inquiring 
from someone. Mr. Cross says he knew 
nothing about the transfer of the bond, 
and was surprised to see Mr. Woods and 
the others there. Mr. Cornwall had been 
in New York several days, and on the 
30th of October, in answer to an inquiry, 
he received a telegram from Dr. Waddell 
telling him that Mr. Clarke would arrive 
at the Manhattan Hotel, New York, 
on Monday morning. He says, however, 
he knew nothing about Mr. Clarke’s 
business in New York, nor when he saw 
Mr, Woods and Mr. McLeod did he make 
any inquiry as to the reason of their 
presence there, nor did he learn what it 
was.

À few days after the completion of their 
business in Now York, Mr. Clarke again 
went to England, but was gene onlj* 
a few weeks. Shortly after his return 
he paid Mr. Cornwall the sum of $12,500, 
spoken of before in connection with the 
arrangement respecting , the steamship 
enterprise. One-quarter of the purchase 
price of the bonds was paid on the 1st 
of November, and went to the credit of 
the special account in the bank in due 
course. The remainder was paid in three 
further instalments of one-quarter each 
at the beginning of December, January 
and February following, and deposited 
in the same way. The bonds were 
declared by Mr. Clarke to have been 
.-old at par, and the amount which was 
paid was exactly the face value, together 

-,-jterest r.n the three deferred pay­
ments. This money is now in the banks 
and it is quite, clear that no one has 
received any of it. If it comprises the 
entire proceeds of the bond sale it is 
also clear that no one has received any 
portion of the proceeds of the bond 
sale. It has been seen, however, that 
Mr. Clarke did intend to retain a sub­
stantial commission out of the proceeds, 
but was advised by his solicitor that he 
could not legally do it. It will be noted, 
however, that the letter of advice con­
tained a paragraph which to a shrewd 
man might indicate a wav in which his 
purpose might be accomplished to some 
extent by making an actual sale to a 
purchaser at a price less than the market 
price, under an arrangement with him 
for a consideration, though not a com­
mission, a very natural way toeing by 
a division, in such proportions as might 
be agreed, of the difference between the 
sale price and the price to be obtained 
when the bonds were sold on open market. 
The letter intimated that this could only 
be prevented by a desire to keep up the 
credit of the Company and the Province. 
If such a desire v re lacking then there 
would be nothing in the-way if a suitable 
purchaser could be found. In March of 
that year the Province had sold in 
England, through tiie medium of the 
Imperial Bank, an issue of $2,000,000 
of 4 per cent. 30 or 40 year bondis of the 
Province. The pr ce realized was 97 
per cent. There were certain small 
charge*, amounting in all to seven-eighths 
4 v.r cj.ï , for bank commission, but they 
need not be consi red, for they Were 
or cervices such a were performed by 

Mr. Clarke in ret ; -ict to the railway 
bond issue. It wo- l appear, therefore, 
that if 4 per cent, onds of only 30 or 
40 years ’duration v ould sell for within 
20 of par, 5 per ce:*1, bonds of 50 years 
should bring a gf ol deal more than

gar. There is evict ice, too, that these 
onds were worth a - ood deal more than 
par, for on the 9th of November they 

were offered in Lc: on for public sub­
scription by the house of Morgan for 
110, payable in instalments up to the 
1st of March. The prospectus states 
that even at this rate they yield 4o per 
cent., allowing for redemption at par 
at maturity. This, it will be seen, is a 
good desl higher rate than the purchasers 
of the Provincial bonds would realize.

It will be seen that there is a difference 
o* 10 per cent, between the sale price to

out of season, he has tried 
to interest everyone in the project of a 
railway to Fort McMurray. In March, 

90S, he statesJthat he is satisfied that a
of the agreement the proceeds are to be bond guarantee can be obtained from the 
paid upon the construction of the road Provincial Government; and yet, from a
in ten mile sections without ballast or 
equipment, even though it may not 
take half the sum to accomplish such : 
construction.

Then, under the terms of the agreement, 
all of the money remaining on completion 
of th'c road is to be paid out to the com­
pany, who are to receive $20,000 a mile 
for each ten miles completed. Conse­
quently any premium obtained on the 
sale of the bonds would be the property 
of the Company, but would simply be 
in the bank until the completion of the 
read, and the Company would lose in­
terest. Assuming that the road would 
be built,* the Province would have no in­
terest whatever in any premium. In 
that view it might not seem anything 
very improper to make an arrangement 
which would prevent that loss without 
injuring anyone.

The short trip of Mr. Clarke to England 
after the completion of the sale in New 
York through the Morgan’s agents there 
also lends color to the view that the mat­
ter was not closed. The fact also that 
soon after he was able to pay Cornwall 
$12.500 shows that he had some available 
money at that time*, for though he was 
spoken of as a man of means and of finan­
cial standing, there is no evidence of his 
having made any substantial payment, ! 
larger at least than that required for the 
purchase of the option, up to this time. 
Of course, with the bond issue in the bank 
there would he little difficulty for bim to 
obtain an advance form a bank, and pos­
sibly this money was obtained in this 
way, for we find that on the 29th Novem­
ber the Company negotiated a loan of 
half a million dollars from the Royal 
Bank, of which, however, he only re­
ceived one half. With this sum and one- 
half of the difference between the twy 
selling, prices, he would still have avail­
able considerably less than the 10% or 
15% which he proposed to obtain. On 
a question of probabilities one has to 
consider wh^ :i i. , re improbable, that 
such an arrfngemont should be made or 
that Mr. ■ uo k;,: ' a man whose life ex­
perience It'T?* TrtSrv nu-7 with financial 
me 'utions, • i mi i which he was 
President, of Yice-iVc. lent, and who 
would therefore not be likely to be de­
ceived, should allow the bonds to be sac­
rificed to the extent of from half to three- 
quarters of a million deliars. Almost 
immediately after the sale of the bond 
issue a Construction Company which had 
been in contemplation for some time was 
formed for the purpose of building the 
road. This company, with a capital 
of $500,000, was fonned under the Do­
minion Companies’ Act on the 21th day 
of November, 1909, the first incorpora­
tors being Mr. Minty and others from his 
office. Their interests, which were only 
nominal, were subsequently transferred 
to Mr. R. B. Clarke, who at the time the 
evidence was taken was nominally the only 
person interested. This company made 
an agreement with the Railway Company 
whereby it agreed to build the road, and 
in consideration all the proceeds of the 
bond issue, all of the capital stock, and 
all the other assets cf the Railway Com­
pany were transferred to it. Mr. Minty 
stated that Mr. W. R. Clarke had no in­
terest whatever in it, and that his whole 
interest was limited the $50,G00 of 
stock subscribed at 'be time of organiza­
tion. This seem most unlikely, and, in­
deed, ve fin hat on the 11th October, 
1909, when there were negotiations with 
Mr. J. D. McArthur to get him into the 
Construction Company, in answer to 
objections that Mr. W. R. Clarke, being 
a director of the Railway Company, could 
not be interested legally in the Construc­
tion Company, Mr. Minty wrote to Mr. 
Fisher. Mr. McArthur’s solicitor, a letter 
in which he stated : “It is indispensable 
to our arrangement that the Construction 
Company shall receive the stock end there­
after divide it up with ?tfr. W. R. Clarke, 

j The position would be more open to 
question, in my opinion, if ive resorted 
to so obvious a subterfuge as to arrange 
that the person now controlling the rail­
way should end up as a result of the tran­
saction with only 500 shares of the Rail­
way Company. No person would believe 
that he would give away every interest 
and be satisfied with only 500 shares out 
of 70,000.”

As Mr. Minty points out, such a con­
clusion is quite beyond belie!". The fact 
is also that Mr. W. R. Clarke continued 
to be the active person in control, his 
brother, B. R. Clarke, net appearing m 
that capacity at all. The Construction 
Company up to the conclusion 
of the evidence had not become 
registered in the Province, as required 
by Provincial law. Certain work, how­
ever, had been done on the propose d 
railway. The route for about two-thirds 
of this distance from Edmonton to Fort 
McMurray had been cleared, and portions 
of it graded, though the plans had not been 
filed or the route approved by the Pro­
vince, as required bv the Railway Act. 
The evidence shows tnat this route, while 
not passing through as good a country for 
settlement as either route previously sur­
veyed, permits of construction at less 
expense. The actual distance of this 
route,, together with the branch to the 
east end of Lac La Biche, which has been 
surveyed, is from 285 to 300 miles. Dr. 
Waddell says that at the time of the 
negotiations the length was discussed, 
that the main line survey showed a dis­
tance of 208 miles, and adding the branch 
lines and sidings, it figured out to about 
335. The sidings provided for by the 
agreement are 1,800 ft. for each nine 
miles, which would make about 12 miles 
on a line 300 miles. Consequently the 
present line with branches and sidings 
complete would be something less than 
315 miles, while 335 was the figure men­
tioned in the disci ssion.j A straight line 
as shown cn the Government maps, which

couple of months later, when Mr Clarke 
assumes the interests of the Athabasca 
Syndicate, if one is to accept liis evidence, 
he seems to have lost all interest in the 
matter. He says he did not know what 
progress was being made, and made no 
inquiries, and did not concern himself 
in any way. In view of the interest he 
professed in the country, the anxiety 
he had displayed in trying to get a rail­
road built, and his financial interests that 
would be affected by such a road, it. is 
difficult to understand such a frame of 
mind. The taking of an interest in the 
progress of the enterprise would have been 
no indicaiton of anything improper, but 
the denial cf such interest might suggest 
that there is something to be concealed. 
These suspicious circumstances, however, 
point to no defini ^conclusion ;][and he 
has denied that he received any other 
benefit, or was interested in any other 
way in the enterprise, and it mustTie held 
that the evidencejdocs noGestablish the 
contrary.

It seems necessary, then, to consider 
what the effect* cf the evidence is towards 
establishing whether the «Premier or At­
torney-General was or is interested in’ 
the enterprise. It will be apparent from 
the relation of the tfacts that little if 
any distinction can be made between the 
two except that Mr. Cross seems to have 
been more closely in touch with Mr. 
Clarke. The evidence shows that in 
the summer of 1908, when encouragement 
of assistance by way of a guarantee of 
bonds was given to Mr. Clarke, who was 
an absolute stranger from the United 
States, who had no interests whatever 
in this Province, onty a few months had 
elapsed since the Athabasca Syndicate, 
composed almost entirely of western men, 
had been refused any assistance, although 
they had asked only for a guarantee up 
to the cost, but not to exceed $13,000 a 
mile, with interest at 4%, and had shown 
facts indicating a strong probability that, 
they could carry out the enterprise. The 
letter of the 18th October, 1907, indeed 
asked for a guarantee of only the interest 
on the bonds, the amount oi which, how- 
evciVwas nvrispecîîied/ Bat zne letter Was 
accompanied by their engineer’s estimate, 
showing the cost of building the road as 
$16,560 a mile, including $1,000 for bal­
last, $650 for sidings/ $1,000 lor terminals, 
and $1,500 for equipment. It suggests 
that 10% should be added for contin­
gencies, and if there were any spècial 
bridging (which there is not, as the evi­
dence shows) it might conic up to $20,000 
a mile. It would be a fair assumption 
that in furnishing an estimate such as 
this on an application for a guarantee, 
the engineer would not err in making the 
estimate too low. Tihs letter was pro­
duced to the Commission by the Premier 
after a copy had been furnished by the 
Syndicate. When the negotiations wen; 
resumed in October, or Thereabouts, not 
a year after the receipt of this letter and 
estimate, Mr Clarke was still the stranger 
he had beèn, but lie got a promise of as­
sistance, and assistance far beyond what 
had ever been askcil for before. A guar­
antee of $13,000 a mile at 4% had been 
asked for, and $20*000 a mi!e at 5% was 
given to this Company. Sidings and ter­
minals had been included in the former 
request, but .special provision was made 
for them here, increasing the mileage 
guarantee by $1,140 for the terminals, 
guarantee 1 at $400,000, and by $750 for 
tac sidings, if only the minimum sidings 
are built. Tire qvHence shows that the 
cost of sidings may be less, but seldom is 
more than half the average cost per mile 
of the general line. In the guarantees 
given to the Canadian Northern and Grand 
Trunk Pacific no special provision is 
made for sidings or terminals. This Com­
pany is per mi ted to sell all its bonds before 
the expenditure of anything on the road. 
Ibis involves, of course, a considerable 
loss of interest on the capital while it 
is lying idle before it is actually earned. 
The roads guaranteed for the Canadian 
Northern are chiefly roads authorized 
to be constructed by the Company al­
ready referred to as incorporated by 
Mackenzie & Matin, under the name oi" 
The Alberta & Midland Railway, and 
under the Act of Incorporation, as al­
ready mentioned, bonds can be issued 
only in proportion to so much of the line 
as is actually constructed or. under con­
tract. Thé same restriction is, imposed 
by the Dominion Act which authorizes the 
the Grand- Trunk Pacific branch lines 
which the Province guaranteed. The 
payment is made to this Company, as 
already indicated, upon completion of 
the road without ballast, in ten mile 
sections, with the result that at the end 
there may be an unballasted road, with 
the whole $7,000,000 paid over .and no 
security for operation or even equipment 
or ballast except a company which has not 
a dollar in its treasury, and has trans­
ferred all of its stock and assets.

On Dr. Rutherford’s attention being 
called to this possible consequence, he 
justified the provision by saying that 
the road must be operaetd as 50 mile 
sections were completed. It is perfectly 
true that the Act of Incorporation pro­
vides that this shall be done, but while 
it provides no penalty for failure to com­
ply with this term, it may also be pointed 
out that ail of the proceeds can be with­
drawn before a single mile of road is com­
pleted, because, as is already shown.- the 
money is paid out, under the terms of 
the statute and agreement, “upon the 
completion (except as to the ballast : 
which- clearly indicates that ballast is un­
necessary before the road is complete in 
the contemplation of the Legislature, 
and consequently before the-Company 
can be called on to operate it.

As to tlie mileage, even Dr. Waddell pi t 
it at 335 at the outside, but for some ui »
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explained reason it ‘was j 
ment at 350 exactly, till 
building and the payingf 
miles on Dr. Waddell's] 
and 30 to 50 miles a 
work on* the ground, of I 
necessary for the carry] 
undertaking as disclosed 

' ments, and the draft Ac 
gests that if the Legislatu| 
it might have been pi 
It is apparent that tin 
concessions in each case 
amount of money which 
to receive, and to make! 
soon as possible without I 
creasing the benefit whi] 
is do receive in return, 
gard to the cost of the 
paid out to the CompJ 
$200,000 for each ten ui 
without ballast , the cost f 
dicated by the evidence,| 
less than that sum, it 
about $16,000 a mile bl 
who, being the Comrt 
would therefore naturalhl 
place it at too low a figurJ 
one witness who is able1 
personal knowledge of 
His estimate, too, includJ 
for contractor’s profit, an| 
eral line, the sidings be' 
something under $10,.00(1 
after all this the surplud 
bonds had been sold at thl 
would have been about f 
dollars, is to be given t<j 
The standard fixed, too,

. not now existing, «and thel 
to determine, and, as the| 
admittedly of a low el a; 
other case- the star.dar ■ 
a modem road of recog| 
The explanation offered 
the specifications which | 
were those furnished by ! 
original specifications fol 
Northern main line, in \v| 
Nest is given as the standi 
in his letter submitting thl 
points to many defects, scl 
immaterial in the case 
to the Board of Railway^ 
of Canada, which has its < 
No provision is made to i 
fects in the specification 
perilaps the inference of 
justified quite as much as i 
to favor the Railway Coni 

Unfortunately, in the | 
Clarke as a witness, no 
placed on his personality 
powers. But the fact 
men acting as trustees 
ment with a stranger for 1 
by him, and make cori 
n excess of what were 
for the same work, 
granted to others for sin 
with absolutely no knowlj 
of the work to be done 
offered by the other party I 
may reasonably give rise f 
that they have been act! 
motive other than regard I 
it was their duty to prl 
putation of the words o| 
of the Assembly set 
mission is that that mo| 
interest. Many of the 
cumstances related are 
such a conclusion. Thel 
timacy between Mr. Cl 
Cross, and the proceed 
building of the road 
fulfilled the legal reqi| 
gesting a relationship 
belief that the Governmei 
of what is done, are also \ 
this view. But the facts) 
with other conclusions, 
to that fact, direct testil 
by both Dr. Rutherford r 
explicitly denying any pi 
whatever, and it cannot! 
either the evidence itself, | 
in which it was given, 
reason to doubt its correl 
only ground for rejectinJ 
because the circumstanti| 
in conflict with it. As 
for doubt that the infered 
interest is the only reasol 
to be drawn from the J 
related, and in view ofl 
denial, it can only be sail 
opinion of your cornni 
evidence does not warrant 1 
t here was or is any such ]_ 
on the part of Dr. Rutti 
Cross, as is suggested byl 
the resolution of the Assq 

All of which is respe 
D. L.
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Dated at Edmonton, And 
Minority Report by J| 

Edmonton, Alta.,1 
To His Honor the Lie{ 

ernor of Alberta in i 
Sir,—I have the honor 

as my report, in pursuant-! 
mission recently issued bvl 
and directed to the HonoJ 
lice Scott, the Honorable] 
Harvey and myself.

The necessity for my mall 
report arises irom the fac| 
in the result my answers 
points of the inquiry arc] 
materially different from 
colleagues, the evidence lid 
a different impression upj 
with regard to the motives 1 
and the intentions which | 
minds or Mr. Rutherford, 
Mr. Cornwall, the only tl 

3 “Officers of the Governmei] 
of the Legislature,” upoi 
imputations were cast durirl 
of the inquiry. It them 
necessary for me to exprl 
upon the more prominent r 
dealt with by my colleaj 
joint report, in which, for 
dicated, 1 find mysell" unal 

My colleagues are of opiil 
not important to find Vvha 
with regard to Mr. Cushinl 
of what took place at the i] 
Ministers in Calgary in Jul 
my opinion it is of the greatt] 
to do so. Criticism is 
Rutherford and Mr. Cross 
of their knowledge of v: 
at various stages of the affs 
the subject of this inquiry, ; 
coupled with Mr. Cushii 
ignorance, is draw’ll an inf 
least a suspicion, of an ui| 
of this Company on their 
intent of. obtaining bene! 
while not even a suggest ioi 
is made against Mr. Cush 
none, and I think there 
whatever to do so: but if 
and in my opinion the evide 
that it is a fact—that Mr. 
a knowledge of all the ini


